
 
 
To: Members of the  

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe (Chairman) 
Councillor Michael Turner (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillors Gareth Allatt, Nicholas Bennett MA J.P., Mark Brock, Robert Evans, 
Kira Gabbert, Colin Hitchins, Josh King, Alexa Michael, Neil Reddin FCCA, 
Melanie Stevens, Harry Stranger, Thomson and Stephen Wells 

 
 A meeting of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee will be held at Bromley 

Civic Centre on TUESDAY 1 JUNE 2021 AT 7.00 PM  
 
PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will be held in the Council Chamber at the Civic 
Centre, Stockwell Close, Bromley, BR1 3UH. Members of the public can attend the 
meeting to ask questions submitted in advance (see item 3 on the agenda.)  There 
will be limited additional space for other members of the public to attend the meeting 
– if you wish to attend please contact us, before the day of the meeting if possible, 
using the email address or phone number above. 
 
Please be prepared to follow the identified social distancing guidance at the meeting, 
including wearing a face covering. 
 

 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Corporate Services 
 

 

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from 
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ 

 
A G E N D A 

 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3   QUESTIONS  
 

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions that are not specific to reports 
on the agenda must have been received in writing 10 working days before the date of 
the meeting - by 5pm on Tuesday 18th May 2021.    
 
Questions specifically on reports on the agenda should be received within two working 
days of the normal publication date of the agenda.  Please ensure that questions 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 
TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Graham Walton 

   graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 0208 461 7743   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 21 May 2021 

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


 
 

specifically on reports on the agenda are received by the Democratic Services Team 
by 5pm on Tuesday 25th May 2021. 
 

4    CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 23 MARCH AND 19 
MAY 2021 (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

5    APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 (Pages 11 - 18) 
 

6    WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS ARISING (Pages 19 - 22) 
 

7    AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 MARCH 2021, 
EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION (Pages 23 - 32) 
 

8   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000  
 

 The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 

  

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description 

9   EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
HELD ON 23 MARCH 2021 (Pages 33 - 36) 
 

Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding 
that information)  

10   AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT 
MINUTES - 9 MARCH 2021 (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

Information relating to any action taken 
or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution 
of crime.  

 
  



1 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 6.00 pm on 23 March 2021 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Stephen Wells (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 

Councillors Gareth Allatt, Vanessa Allen, Mary Cooke, 
Robert Evans, Kira Gabbert, Josh King, 
Christopher Marlow, Russell Mellor, Tony Owen, 
Neil Reddin FCCA, Melanie Stevens and Michael Turner 
 
 

 
Also Present: 

 
Councillor Keith Onslow 
 

 
141   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 
142   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
143   QUESTIONS 

 
No questions had been received. 
 
144   CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD 

ON 9TH AND 25TH FEBRUARY 2021 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 9th and 25th 
February 2021 be confirmed. 
 
145   MINOR CONSTITUTION CHANGES 

Report CSD21037 
 
The report presented three minor changes to the Constitution for reference to 
full Council – (i) a request from the Chairman of the Pensions Investment 
Sub-Committee for the Sub-Committee to be appointed as a full Committee, 
reporting direct to the Council, from the next Council year onwards; (ii) some 
changes to allow electronic sealing and signing of documents and (iii) to 
clarify executive and non-executive delegations concerning joint 
arrangements and partnerships.    
 
Some Members considered that a wider review of the status of the 
Committee’s Sub-Committees should be carried out, particularly the Audit 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
23 March 2021 
 

2 

Sub-Committee. It was confirmed that no changes were proposed to the 
Members Allowances Scheme. 
 
RESOLVED that Council be recommended to – 
 
(1) Agree the appointment of a Pensions Investment Committee from the 
start of the 2021/22 Council year to replace the Pensions Investment 
Sub-Committee. 

(2) Amend the terms of reference of the General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee and agree the terms of reference of the new Pensions 
Investment Committee as set out in Appendix A to this report.  

(3) Agree to modify Articles 14.4 and 14.5 of the Constitution to permit 
electronic execution and sealing of documents. 

(4) Agree to Modify Article 11 of the Constitution to clarify the separation 
between Executive and Non- Executive functions. 

(Councillor Russell Mellor requested that his abstention be recorded.) 

146   LOCAL JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF 
THE MEETING HELD ON 24TH FEBRUARY 2021 - REFERRAL 
REGARDING THE ANNUAL STAFF SURVEY 
 

The Committee received the minutes of the Local Joint Consultative 
Committee held on 24th February 2021. At its meeting, the Consultative 
Committee had received a report on the Council’s staff survey; consideration 
of the report had been referred to this Committee, but Members proposed that 
the issue be considered at the LJCC’s next meeting (scheduled to be 13th July 
2021.).  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the LJCC meeting on 24th February 2021 
be received and noted, and consideration of the staff survey be referred 
to the LJCC’s next meeting. 
 
147   WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS ARISING 

Report CSD21038 
 
The Committee considered its draft work programme for the 2021/22 Council 
year, and matters outstanding from previous meetings. It was confirmed that 
there would be the usual review of the election – this report would be 
submitted in autumn 2021.  
 
RESOLVED that the draft work programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
23 March 2021 

 

3 
 

148   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000 
 

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the item of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 

The following summary 
refers to matters involving exempt information 

 
149   FUNDING OF HISTORIC GLC/ILEA PENSION LIABILITIES 

 
The Committee considered a report on options for the funding of historic 
GLA/ILEA pension liabilities. 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 7.43 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 5



This page is left intentionally blank



1 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the special meeting held at 8.54 pm on 19 May 2021 
 

Present: 
Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Michael Turner (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 

Councillors Gareth Allatt, Nicholas Bennett MA J.P., 
Mark Brock, Kira Gabbert, Colin Hitchins, Josh King, 
Alexa Michael, Neil Reddin FCCA, Melanie Stevens, 
Harry Stranger, Thomson and Stephen Wells 
 
 

 
Also present: 

      Other Members of the Council 
 

150   PROPORTIONALITY OF SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

RESOLVED that the proportionality of Sub-Committees be agreed as 
follows –  
 

 Size Conservative Labour Independent  

Audit Sub-
Committee 

7 6 1 0 

Industrial 
Relations Sub-
Committee  

7 6 1 0 

Local Joint 
Consultative Cttee  

9 8 1 0 

Rights of Way 
Sub-Committee  

7 6 1 0 

 
151   MEMBERS OF SUB-COMMITTEES 

 
RESOLVED that the Schedule of Members to serve on the Sub-Committees 
of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee be agreed as below. 
 
(i) AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 Councillors 

1 Neil Reddin (CH) 

2 Robert Evans (VC) 

3 Gareth Allatt  

4 Simon Fawthrop  

5 Tony Owen 

6 Stephen Wells 

7 Angela Wilkins (Lab) 

Page 7



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
19 May 2021 
 

2 

 
(ii) INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE (to include Leader, 
Deputy Leader, Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee.) 
 

 Councillors 

1 Colin Smith (CH) 

2 Kate Lymer (VC) 

3 David Cartwright  

4 Josh King (Lab) 

5 Christopher Marlow  

6 Pauline Tunnicliffe 

7 Michael Turner  

 
(iii) LOCAL JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE (to include Leader or 
named Deputy, Chairman of Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy 
Development and Scrutiny Committee or named Deputy and Chairman of the 
General Purposes and Licensing Committee or named Deputy) 
 

 Councillors 

1 Simon Fawthrop (CH) 

2 Nicholas Bennett 

3 David Cartwright  

4 Josh King (Lab) 

5 Christopher Marlow  

6 Michael Rutherford 

7 Colin Smith 

8 Pauline Tunnicliffe 

9 Michael Turner  

 
(iv) RIGHTS OF WAY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillors 

1 Vanessa Allen (Lab) 

2 Mike Botting  

3 Simon Fawthrop 

4 Richard Scoates  

5 Harry Stranger 

6 Kieran Terry 

7 Michael Tickner 

 
(v)  APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED: 
(1)   that all Members of the Council, except Executive Members, be 
eligible for appointment to the Appeals Sub-Committee. 
 
(2) three Members be drawn as required, to constitute an Appeals Sub-
Committee. 

Page 8



General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
19 May 2021 

 

3 
 

 
(vi) LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(1)   that all Members of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
be eligible for appointment to the Licensing Sub-Committee; 
 
(2) three Members be drawn as required, to constitute a Licensing 
Sub-Committee. 
 
 
152   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN OF 

COMMITTEES 
 

RESOLVED that the following Councillors be appointed as Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of the Sub-Committees of the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee. 
 

AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Neil Reddin 

 

Robert Evans  

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 

Colin Smith 

 

Kate Lymer  

LOCAL JOINT 
CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
Simon Fawthrop 

 
(Staff-side 
appointment) 

RIGHTS OF WAY SUB-
COMMITTEE 
 

- - 

 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 8.55 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 9



This page is left intentionally blank



  

1 

Report No. 
CSD21050 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Date:  1 June 2021 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 
 

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services 

Ward: All 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1    This report requests that the Committee, on behalf of the Council, considers the appointment of 
Council representatives to serve on outside bodies and partnerships. Most appointments are 
made annually, following the municipal year, but a small number of appointments are for three 
or four year terms.  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

The Committee is recommended to consider the nominations made by the Groups in 
Appendix 1 and make appointments to outside bodies and partnerships. 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



  

2 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 
 
1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council:  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £366k 
 

5. Source of funding: Revenue Budget 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   7 (6.67fte) 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: None:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  Call in does not apply to non-executive reports  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable 
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable 
 

Page 12



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1   The Committee is asked to make various appointments to partnerships and outside bodies on 
behalf of the Council. Most appointments are annual and follow the Council year, but there also 
a small number of longer appointments that run for three or four years.  

3.2   The schedule of appointments to be made, with nominations from the Conservative, Labour and 
Independent groups, is attached at Appendix A. Where there are more nominations than 
vacancies, requiring a additional consideration by the Committee, the list is marked with *. 
These are – 

Bromley Economic Partnership 

Adults Safeguarding Board 

Children’s Safeguarding Board 

Bromley Y Project 

Mentoring Steering Group 

London Road Safety Council  

Proactive Bromley 

Clarion Housing Group  

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust 

Beckenham Parochial Charities 

 

 
 

 
 

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children/Policy/ 
Financial/Legal/Personnel/Procurement 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

2020 Outside Bodies report (GP&L, 18/5/20) 

 

Page 13



This page is left intentionally blank



 

1 

Appendix A 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 

ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  

AND PARTNERSHIP BODIES 2021/22 

(i) London Councils’ Appointments 

 Leaders’ Committee (S.101 Joint Committee) 

(One Member and up to two deputies) 

Cllr Colin Smith  

Cllr Peter Fortune (deputy) 

Cllr Kate Lymer (deputy)  

London Councils Transport and Environment Committee – TEC 
(Associated Joint Committee) 

(One Member and up to 4 deputies) 

William Huntington-Thresher  

Grants Committee 
(Associated Joint Committee) 

 

(One Member and up to 4 deputies - must be on the Executive) 

Cllr Michael Rutherford 

Cllr Kate Lymer (deputy) 

Greater London Employment Forum 

(One Member and one deputy) 

Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe  

Cllr Michael Turner (deputy)  

London Pensions CIV 
(Sectoral Joint Committee) 

(One Member and up to 2 deputies) 

Cllr Keith Onslow 

Cllr Gary Stevens & Cllr Simon Fawthrop  (deputies) 

 

 

Page 15



 

2 

Lead Members for London Councils  

Children & Young People/Safeguarding & Schools: Cllr Kate Lymer 

Skills & Employment: Cllr Peter Morgan 

Economic Development/Business: Cllr Peter Morgan 

Crime and Public Protection: Cllr Angela Page 

Arts/Culture, Tourism, Sport & Leisure: Cllr Peter Morgan 

Health and Social Care including Adult Services : Cllr Diane Smith  

Housing & Regeneration: Cllr Peter Morgan 

Planning/Infrastructure/Development: Cllr Alexa Michael 

Finance & Corporate Services: Cllr Michael Rutherford 

 (ii) Partnership Appointments 

Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 

Cllr Angela Page 

Safer Neighbourhood Board  (3) 

Cllr Angela Page, Cllr Kathy Bance (1 vacancy) 

 *Bromley Economic Partnership (1) 

Cllr Vanessa Allen, Cllr Peter Morgan, Cllr Ryan Thomson  

(Cllr Vanessa Allen & Cllr Julian Benington  to receive papers.)  

Adult’s Safeguarding Board (2) 

*Cllr Ian Dunn, Cllr Colin Smith & Cllr Diane Smith  

Children’s Safeguarding Board (2) 

*Cllr Simon Jeal, Cllr Colin Smith & Cllr Kate Lymer 

 (iii)  Education, Children & Families Appointments 

Management Committee of Wood Lodge Living Skills Centre (1)  

Cllr Kira Gabbert 

Early Years Development & Child Care Partnership (1)  

Cllr Kate Lymer 

*Bromley “Y” Project (2) 

Cllr Judi Ellis, Cllr Kieran Terry & Cllr Ryan Thomson 

Page 16



 

3 

Mentoring Steering Group (1) 

*Cllr Angela Page & Cllr Simon Jeal  

The Court of the University of Kent (1) 
 (Remainder of 3 Year Term to 1/8/23) 

Cllr Stephen Wells 

 (iv) Environment & Community Services Appointments 

London Road Safety Council (1)  

*Cllr Ian Dunn & Cllr Robert Mcilveen 

(v) Renewal, Recreation & Housing Appointments 

Bromley Arts Council (4)  

Cllr Vanessa Allen, Cllr Kim Botting &  Cllr Alexa Michael  

(Note: The Bromley Arts Council has been replaced by the Bromley Arts Trust , and 
is due to be wound up by summer 2021.) 

The Crystal Palace Community Development Trust (1) 

(Crystal Palace Ward Councillor) 

Cllr Angela Wilkins 

Newable Ltd (1) (formerly Greater London Enterprise – GLE) 

Cllr Peter Morgan 

London Youth Games (1)  

Cllr Graham Arthur  

*Proactive Bromley (2) 

Cllr Kevin Brooks & Cllr Michael Rutherford  

Biggin Hill Airport Consultative Committee 

Representative of the Council as freeholder: 

Cllr Graham Arthur (deputy Cllr Harry Stranger) 

Representative of Biggin Hill Ward:  

Cllr Melanie Stevens (deputy Cllr Julian Benington) 

Representative of Darwin Ward:  

Cllr Richard Scoates (deputy Cllr Simon Fawthrop) 

 

Page 17



 

4 

  (vi) General Appointments 

 Bromley Town Twinning Association (3) 

Cllr Kathy Bance, Cllr Kim Botting & Cllr Mary Cooke  
 
Community Links Bromley (2) 

Cllr Kevin Brooks (1 vacancy) 

Leadership Committee of the Bromley Community Fund (1)  

Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe 

(v)     Three Year Terms  

Clarion Housing Group South London Regional Scrutiny Committee (1) 

*Cllr Christine Harris & Cllr Angela Wilkins  

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust (1) 

*Cllr Yvonne Bear & Cllr Simon Jeal  

(vi)    Four Year Terms  

Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for Greater London (1) 
(Remainder of four year term to May 2022) 

Cllr Mike Botting 

Beckenham Parochial Charities (1 of 6) 

Cllr Kathy Bance & Cllr Simon Jeal  

(Nomination sought from the charity for  one vacancy) 

Mytime Active (1 of 2) 

One vacancy for the remainder of the four year term to May 2022 (Councillor Evans 
fllls the other post) 

Cllr Josh King  

Cray Valley War Memorial Hall (2 of 4) 

Two vacancies for the remainder of the four year term to June 2022. 

(Councillors Bear and Stranger fill the other posts) 

 

 

 

* Denotes an appointment where there are more members nominated than vacancies 

Page 18



  

1 

Report No. 
CSD21049 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Date:  1 June 2021 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS ARISING 
 

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services 

Ward: All 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1   This report summarises the Committee’s work programme for the 2021/22 Council year. In 
accordance with the decision of Council on 8th April 2019, this report also covers matters 
outstanding from previous meetings. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

Members are requested to consider and note the matters outstanding from previous 
meetings (paragraph 3.5) and their draft work programme for 2021/22. 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



  

2 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 
 
1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council:  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £359k 
 

5. Source of funding: Revenue Budget  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   7 (6.67fte) 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: None:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  This report does not involve an executive decision.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Not applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable  
 

Page 20



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1   Bromley Council operates under a “Leader and Executive” constitutional model, with most 
decision making functions resting with the Leader, Portfolio Holders and the Executive. 
However, there are a number of functions which the executive side is prohibited from dealing 
with, for which Committees need to be appointed. In Bromley, the majority of these “non-
executive” functions are the responsibility of Development Control Committee for town planning 
and related functions, and this Committee for most other non-executive functions.    

3.2    General Purposes and Licensing Committee fulfils the role of Licensing Committee under the 
2003 Licensing Act (which requires a membership of between ten and fifteen), but also deals 
with a range of other non-executive functions that cannot be dealt with by the Executive or do 
not fall within the terms of reference of Development Control Committee, the Pensions 
Committee or the Standards Committee. It therefore has a range of varied and sometimes 
unrelated responsibilities, including audit, human resources, complaints, elections and 
appointments.   

3.3   The Committee’s role is very different to that of a PDS Committee, in that it has decision-making 
powers, many of which are delegated to a number of sub-committees - 

 Appeals Sub-Committee 

 Audit Sub-Committee 

 Industrial Relations Sub-Committee 

 Licensing Sub-Committee 

 Local Joint Consultative Committee 

 Rights of Way Sub-Committee   

These sub-committees have decision-making powers within their own terms of reference, and in 
some cases only meet when issues arise that require a decision from Members.  

3.4    The Committee has six scheduled meetings in the year, plus a meeting after the Council’s 
annual meeting to appoint its Sub-Committees. The meetings for the 2021/22 Council year are 
set out in Appendix A, with the reports anticipated for each meeting.  

 
3.5   Members are asked to note the following matter outstanding from a previous meeting – 
 
 2021/22 Pay Award (25th February 2021 – minute 140) 

Members requested details of the numbers of Council staff each year who were not awarded 
the normal pay rise due to performance issues. This information was circulated to Committee 
Members on 24th March 2021. 
 

 Non-Applicable 
Sections: 

Impact on vulnerable adults and children/Policy/Financial/ 
Personnel/Legal/Procurement 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact Officer) 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



  

4 

 

Appendix A 
 

General Purposes and Licensing Committee 
Work Programme 2021/22 

 
19th May 2021 (following annual Council meeting) 
Appointment of Sub-Committees 
 
1 June 2021 
Appointments to Outside Bodies 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
6th July 2021  
Review of Meeting Arrangements  
Scheme of Delegation to Officers 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
21st September 2021 
Review of GLA Election 2021  
Annual Complaints Report and Annual Ombudsman’s Letter 2020/21 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
30th November 2021 
Member Support, IT and Induction - 2022 
Teachers Pay Policy - Centrally Based Staff 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
8th February 2022 
Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 
Members Allowances 2022/23 
Executive Assistants Reports 2021/22 
Programme of Meetings 2022/23 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
29th March 2022 
Annual Review of Licensing Activity 
Annual Review of the Scheme of Delegation to Officers 
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding   
 
Reports will be presented on the Audit of Financial Statements for 2019/20 and 2020/21 – dates to be 
confirmed. 
 
Draft Minutes from Sub-Committee meetings are received for information at each meeting. 
 
 

Page 22



1 
 

AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the virtual meeting held at 6.30 pm on 9 March 2021 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Robert Evans (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 

Councillors Gareth Allatt, Ian Dunn, Keith Onslow, 
Tony Owen and Stephen Wells 
 
 

 

 
Also Present: 

 
Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe 
 

 
60   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 

No apologies for absence were received. 
 
61   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor Evans declared an interest as a Governor of Saint Olave’s School . 
Councillor Wells declared an interest in that he sat on the Court of Saint 
Olave’s and Saint Saviour’s Schools.  
 
62   CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 

ON 3rd NOVEMBER 2020  (EXCLUDING THOSE CONTAINING 
EXEMPT INFORMATION) 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit Sub-Committee that sat on 3rd of 
November 2020, (excluding those that contained exempt information) were 
agreed as a correct record.  
 
63   QUESTIONS TO THE AUDIT SUB COMMITTEE 

 
No questions had been received.  
 
64   MATTERS ARISING 

CSD 21029 
 
The Committee discussed the matters that had arisen at the previous 
meeting.  
 
The Chairman noted that 2/3 of the matters outlined would be updated upon 
in the Internal Audit Progress report. 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 
 

2 

The first matter was concerning training being provided to members of the 
Committee, and the Chairman hoped that Members had been able to attend 
the recent training session that had been provided by Mazars, and he asked 
for feedback concerning this. A Member felt that the profile of the Committee 
could be increased if there was a report from the Audit Sub-Committee going 
to Full Council at least once a year. A discussion took place about the 
possibility of raising the profile of the sub-committee to enable it to be 
upgraded to a full committee, rather than being a sub-committee of the GP&L 
Committee. 
 
The Chairman remarked that in the training it was recommended that the 
Chief Executive should attend the Audit Sub-Committee on a regular basis. 
He expressed the view that this was not required, and that on some occasions 
(when necessary), Chief Officers had attended meetings of the Sub-
Committee. A Member commented that currently, discussions were being 
made concerning the status of the Pensions and Investment Sub-Committee, 
so now may be an appropriate time to have similar discussions with respect to 
the Audit Sub-Committee. A Member remarked that it was the case that the 
minutes of the Audit Sub-Committee were sent to the GP&L Committee, but 
as far as he was aware, the GP&L Committee did not have the authority to 
overrule any decisions made by the Audit-Sub Committee. A number of 
Members felt that this being the case, there were grounds for making the 
Audit Sub-Committee a full committee that reported to Full Council. 
 
The Head of Audit and Assurance said that in Bromley Council, the functions 
of audit scrutiny were dealt with between the GP&L Committee and the Audit 
Sub-Committee. In Bromley it was the case that the GP&L Committee dealt 
with the statutory accounts. He explained that as a result of the Redmond 
Review, the MHCLG (Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government) supported the idea that an annual report from the External 
Auditors should be submitted to Full Council. If this was the case going 
forward, then it may be appropriate for the Audit Sub-Committee (or Audit 
Committee if the Sub-Committee became a full committee) to present a report 
to Full Council at the same time. It was noted that the MHCLG was currently 
working on guidance for councils (in collaboration with CIPFA, the NAO and 
LGA) concerning the submission of audit reports to Full Council and were also 
considering what guidance should be provided with respect to appointing 
independent members to audit committees. The Chairman asked if these 
proposed changes had implications in terms of the Council’s resources. The 
Head of Audit and Assurance responded in the affirmative and commented 
that it would be important to avoid duplication.  
 
There was a general consensus amongst Members that central government 
was placing more emphasis on governance for large organisations in an 
attempt to avoid financial problems leading to the collapse of the organisation. 
They were trying to avoid future financial failure. One way of doing this was to 
give a higher profile to audit reporting, including the reporting of issues to Full 
Council. In this way knowledge of the risks being faced would be spread 
across the organisation as a whole. A Member commented that it would be a 
useful exercise to see how other local authorities were managing their audit 

Page 24



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 

 

3 
 

functions. With reference to training it was felt that this was required so that 
Members were as equipped as possible to represent the public. It was noted 
that some Members had missed out on the previous training session as they 
had not received the link. The Head of Audit and Assurance promised to send 
out the link to any who wanted it so that they could access the training 
session recording.     
 
A Member expressed the view that the GP&L Committee was too big. It 
consisted of 15 Members, and now that there was not so much licencing to 
deal with, it was too big and its size needed to be reviewed. The Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman said that the size and composition of the GP&L 
Committee was not within the remit of this Committee to discuss. 
 
RESOLVED that the Matters Arising report be noted, and that the Head 
of Audit and Assurance would disseminate the link of the training 
session that had been organised recently by Mazars.          
 
65   INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS PUBLISHED ON THE COUNCIL 

WEBSITE 
 

No questions had been received regarding the internal audit reports that had 
been published on the Council website. 
 
RESOLVED that the internal audit reports published on the Council 
website be noted. 
 
66   ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021-22 AND INTERNAL 

AUDIT CHARTER 
FSD 21013 

 
The Internal Audit Plan had been affected by the Covid pandemic. It was 
difficult to know going forward what would be the ‘new normal’. This being the 
case, the Internal Audit Plan was more of a ‘statement of intent’. The Internal 
Audit Team would need to be flexible and agile. The current recovery audit 
plan had been affected by the Covid lockdown because staff had been 
seconded to work on pandemic related duties and other staff were providing 
assurance and anti fraud checks on business support grants. The Head of 
Audit and Assurance explained that the Internal Audit Plan had gone for 
review to the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) and that the CLT had 
approved the plan. Some work was being rolled forward and the Internal Audit 
Team had been  looking at new areas of risk with CLT. More government 
grant relief money was due to come in and this would need to be processed 
and assurance provided to government.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Assurance updated members regarding the 
Internal Audit Charter, explaining that the Charter outlined the status and 
authority of internal audit. There had on this occasion been some specific 
guidance provided with respect to the contents of the Charter which made 
allowances for the pandemic. 
 

Page 25



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 
 

4 

A Member enquired as to how much work undertaken by the Audit Team had 
been related to the Covid Pandemic, and how much resource was likely to be 
allocated to Covid related work going forward. The Head of Audit and 
Assurance did not have the information to hand and estimated that over the 
previous year 60% of the work undertaken by the Audit Team had been Covid 
related. He said that he would check on this figure and update the Committee. 
Going forward, out of 881 planned audit days, it was estimated that 145 days 
would be taken up by work that was Covid related. It was hoped that the 
Team would be working on ‘business as usual’ by June. The Head of Audit 
and Assurance complimented the work that had been undertaken by 
Liberata’s Technology Team in designing appropriate systems.      
 
The Vice Chairman asked (given the extra workload) if the current staffing 
levels of the Internal Audit Team were sufficient. The Head of Audit and 
Assurance answered that the Internal Audit Team were coping for now, but 
the position on a long term basis was not sustainable. 
 
It was noted that the services of Mazars had not been called upon in the last 
financial year. They had their own core contracts with councils that did not 
have their own internal audit staff. The Head of Audit and Assurance clarified 
that he had a budget of approximately £16k that could be used as required to 
support the Internal Audit Team, and that he had been in discussions with 
Mazars about the possibility of them undertaking 2 pieces of work for LBB.  
 
A Member  agreed that the Internal Audit Team should use the concept of 
‘risk’ to decide where to allocate the limited resources of the Internal Audit 
Team. He inquired if the team had received enough training to carry out risk 
assessments themselves, or whether or not this would be undertaken by 
management in their particular area of expertise.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Assurance explained that his team were 
professionally qualified. He mentioned that certain organisations like the 
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors, and the London Audit Group had set 
up online training sessions which explained how to manage risk during the 
pandemic. It was always the case that training and development could be 
enhanced as part of ongoing professional development. Internal Audit 
endeavoured to make things easier for managers by clearly addressing risks 
concerning fraud and error in core guidance documents.  
 
Members were reminded of the previous occasion when the expertise of 
Zurich was called upon and they had assisted in the development of the 
Council’s risk register. This had generally improved the process for assessing 
risks across the board and, for example, it was now the case that Bromley 
Council had a good health and safety risk assessment process in place when 
previously there had been adverse internal audit findings.  Previously, 
business continuity plans had required developing, and in a previous report, 
two P1 recommendations had been issued. However, it was now the case 
that  adequate measures and protocols had been put in place, and these had 
been implemented prior to the onset of the pandemic.   
 

Page 26



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 

 

5 
 

RESOLVED that:   
 

1) The Head of Audit and Assurance check how much of the Internal 
Audit Team’s work in the previous year had been Covid related 

 
2) The 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan be approved.  

 
3) The Internal Audit Charter be approved. 

 
67   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

FSD 21012 
 
The Committee was updated with respect to the audit of purchasing cards. 
This was because it was noted in the audit report dated January 2021, that 
there were three P1 recommendations outstanding. These had now been 
addressed.  The Committee noted that currently, many controls were 
effective; however there were still inadequate controls in certain areas. There 
were issues with direct debit payments, where certain members of staff would 
set these up for efficiency reasons, but when said member of staff was off sick 
or left the organisation--then no one knew how to cancel the direct debits. It 
was also the case that when members of staff had left the organisation, 
purchasing cards were not being deactivated. There were also issues with 
inadequate controls for managing credit limits. It was anticipated that all the 
remaining issues would be ironed out in due course; for now, the audit opinion 
was ‘reasonable’. 
 
Members were updated concerning the review of payroll. It was agreed that 
more effort should be made by claimants to put in their expenses claims in a 
timely manner. The audit opinion for payroll was ‘reasonable’. Four P2 
recommendations had been made which had been accepted by management. 
 
The Committee was updated regarding the audit of small business support 
grants. The purpose of the audit review was to examine the effectiveness of 
controls operated by the Finance Directorate and the Council’s Exchequer 
Contractor for the payment of small business support grants that had been 
made available to small businesses as a result of the Covid pandemic. 
Controls were in place and were working very well, and the overall audit 
opinion was ‘substantial’. Members were pleased to note the extensive 
controls that had been put in place. It was noted that out of 2007 payments 
made, (totalling over £20m), there had only been 1% of claims associated 
with fraud, error or non-compliance. Similarly, the review of Retail, Leisure 
and Hospitality Support Grants had also received an overall audit opinion that 
was ‘substantial’.      
 
Members received an update concerning ‘Starters and Leavers’. The Head of 
Audit and Assurance acknowledged Members’ frustrations that the issues 
concerning Starters and Leavers had still not yet been fully resolved. He said 
that he had attended meetings of the CLT (Corporate Leadership Team) and 
various managers briefing meetings, and had explained clearly what the 
current procedures were, and what managers should do—so managers were 

Page 27



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 
 

6 

now without excuse. The Head of Audit and Assurance explained that a 
simpler process was being developed, so that instead of managers having to 
fill in separate forms for HR and IT, there would just be one form to fill in. The 
new streamlined process was anticipated to be operational by the end of April.    
 
The Committee heard that in some cases, accounts had been left open for 
what the managers would perceive as being ‘practical’ reasons in terms of 
trying to assist operational processes in handover situations. The Head of 
Audit and Assurance had reported back on this matter to CLT and the Chief 
Executive. It was felt that the solution would come when the SharePoint online 
process was implemented.      
 
The Head of Audit and Assurance briefed the Committee that a new audit 
report for management was planned which would summarise all of the issues 
and problems and would be presented to the Committee.  
 
A Member stated that it was part of a manager’s job to manage the members 
of his team that were leaving, and failure to do so should be a disciplinary 
matter with respect to the manager. He said that he would not expect HR to 
issue a P45 until the leaving process had been followed for an employee. A 
Member suggested that this matter may merit a note from the Committee to 
the Chief Executive. The note to essentially say that Members were 
concerned that this matter had not improved. Another Member stated that he 
would like to see the Chief Executive attend the Audit Sub-Committee with 
respect to this matter. The Chairman agreed that a note should be drafted for 
the Chief Executive, which would note the Committee’s irritation that this 
matter kept coming back to the Audit Sub-Committee. The note to also 
suggest that the Chief Executive issue a further directive in this regard. The 
Head of Audit and Assurance agreed to action this. 
 
A Member pointed out that if former staff members were still being given 
access to their accounts and IT systems—then this represented a significant 
security risk. Staff members should not be allowed to leave so soon without 
carrying out a handover process first. This would mean that when they did 
leave, they would no longer need access to their accounts or IT systems.     
 
Members were updated with respect to the follow up review of Highway 
Maintenance. Internal Audit were waiting for management to supply 
documentation to show compliance with their agreed procedures and with 
Financial Regulations. Until this information was provided, the two P1 
recommendations would remain open. It was noted that the Assistant Director 
for Highways was also responsible currently for the running of the vaccination 
centre. 
 
Members heard that with respect to the audit of Procurement Cards, progress 
had been made and the P1 recommendations had been signed off.        
 
The Committee was briefed concerning the follow up audit of St Olave’s 
Grammar School. Despite various obstacles faced both by the school and by 
the Internal Audit Team, progress had been evidenced. The audit of the 

Page 28



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 

 

7 
 

school was in the process of being completed. The school had now recruited 
a Head of Finance. It was felt that the school was now on the right course, 
and that the P1 recommendations had been implemented. A summary of the 
full audit review for the school would be submitted to the next meeting of the 
Committee, and it was planned that an onsite visit to the school be 
undertaken in the autumn.   
 
The Head of Audit and Assurance gave a positive update with respect to 
Looked After Children. New management were going through all 76 
placements to ensure that valid contracts were in place, and that Financial 
Regulations and Contract Procedure rules were being followed. Progress had 
been made and the Internal Audit Team were confident that the issues were 
now being addressed.     
 
The Head of Audit and Assurance provided an update concerning pre-
planning advice issues that had been raised at the last meeting. The Head of 
Audit and Assurance  had followed this matter up with the Assistant Director 
of Planning and Building Control. This was concerning the service that 
councils provided with respect to pre-planning advice, and it was noted that 
government guidance existed for this. There was a service where someone 
came in and paid a fee for planning advice before submitting a formal 
planning application. Concerns had been raised regarding the 
segregation/division of duties. A Member had raised an issue as to how this 
potentially looked from the perspective of the public. The other issue that had 
been raised was after a planner had given planning advice, it could be the 
case that later down the line, he/she may feel that this advice was not correct, 
but may then find it difficult to penalise a planning application that had been 
submitted on the advice that was previously given, as a fee had been paid to 
the Council for this advice. 
 
It was explained that everything that came from the Planning Team was 
checked by a second person, so that no planning advice that was 
disseminated would be the sole responsibility of just one person. It would 
always  be reviewed and signed off by another senior member of the team. It 
was also the case that advice was provided on a ‘without prejudice’ basis. In 
other councils it was often the case that this work was undertaken solely by 
one planning officer. The view of the Assistant Director was that there was no 
need for a further division of responsibilities, and that this would be 
counterproductive and may require additional resources. It was noted that the 
Planning Officers adhered to a professional code of conduct.   
 
The Member who had previously raised concerns around planning advice 
thanked the Head of Audit and Assurance for his comprehensive update and 
for investigating the issues further. 
 
The main Council accounts for 19/20 were still being audited. There had been 
some queries and delays that had partly been caused by the pandemic, but 
there had also been some issues relating to property, plant and equipment, 
where Ernst & Young (the external auditors) required further information. With 
respect to the objection to the accounts from an elector, it was noted that 

Page 29



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 
 

8 

KPMG (the former external auditor) now had all the information that was 
required to hopefully bring the matter to a close. A discussion took place 
regarding the effect of the depreciation on land and buildings. 
 
It was noted that the current P1 list was shorter than was normally the case. 
 
Members commented on the matters relating to the increase in the fees 
requested by the external auditor. The Head of Audit and Assurance 
explained the reasons given by the external auditor for the proposed increase 
in fees. He referenced the fact that in the recent Redmond Review, it was 
stated that the fees for external auditors should be at least 25% higher than 
was currently being charged. It was not clear when this matter would be 
resolved, and so the Head of Audit and Assurance said that he would seek an 
update from the Director of Finance. The Chairman remarked that this was a 
matter that the Director was working hard to resolve, and that in this case the 
PSAA (Public Sector Audit Appointments) had shown themselves to be 
toothless. A Member expressed concern that increased costs in various forms 
were being imposed on local councils, and this may be a matter that may 
need to be escalated upwards. The Head of Audit and Assurance informed 
Members that the Government was providing an additional £15m to councils 
to assist in covering the additional costs of external audit for next year.  
 
A Member referenced the fact that the external auditors had commented that 
Bromley’s financial management system was dated and that this had caused 
them to experience difficulties in the auditing of the Council’s accounts. This 
meant that they could not run some of the automated software that they would 
normally use in the audit process. The Head of Audit and Assurance 
explained that this was an older version of Oracle, and he would find out when 
the upgrade to a newer system was due to take place. 
 
A Member wondered if the fees of the external auditor would decrease when 
the new Financial Information system was in place. 
 
RESOLVED that:          
 

1) The Head of Audit and Assurance would try and find out when the 
fee payable to the external auditors would be agreed 

 
2) The Head of Audit and Assurance would find out when the 

upgrade to the Council’s financial management system would 
take place 
 

3) The Internal Audit Progress report be noted 
 

4) The list of Internal Audit reports published on the Council’s 
website be noted 
 

5) The External Audit update be noted  
 

Page 30



Audit Sub-Committee 
9 March 2021 

 

9 
 

6) A note should be drafted for the Chief Executive, which would note 
the Committee’s irritation that the matter of issues around starters 
and leavers kept coming back to the Audit Sub-Committee. The note 
to also suggest that the Chief Executive issue a further directive in 
this regard.     

 
68   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000 
 

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business listed below as it was likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the press and public were present, there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information. 
 
69   INTERNAL AUDIT FRAUD AND INVESTIGATION REPORT 

FSD 21013 
 
The report provided an overview of Counter Fraud work in 2020/21. The 
report detailed updates on previous reported cases, expanded on new cases 
of interest and detailed cases on the fraud register. 
 
As the contents of this report are confidential, the minutes for this item have 
been detailed in the exempt minutes. 
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Fraud and Investigation report be noted.  
 
70   EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3rd 

NOVEMBER 2020 
 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 3rd November 2020 were agreed 
as a correct record.  
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.40pm. 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 31



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 23 MARCH AND 19 MAY 2021
	GPL 190521 Minutes

	5 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22
	APPENDIX A - APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22

	6 WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS ARISING
	7 AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 MARCH 2021, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION
	9 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 MARCH 2021
	10 AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT MINUTES - 9 MARCH 2021

